
 
 

October 7th, 2025 
 
Hon. Angie Master, Vice Chair 
New York City Landmarks Preservation Commission 
253 Broadway, 11th Floor  
New York, NY 10007 
 
Dr. Margaret Herman, Director of Research 
New York City Landmarks Preservation Commission 
253 Broadway, 11th Floor  
New York, NY 10007 
 
Dear Vice Chair Master and Dr. Herman, 
 
The Historic Districts Council is writing to express support for Village Preservation’s campaign to 
landmark The Most Holy Redeemer Church Complex, including the church and rectory at 165-173 East 
3rd Street and the school at 198-202 East 4th Street Manhattan. The Most Holy Redeemer, also called 
Iglesia Santisomo Rendentor-Natividad, is a testament to ecclesiastical architecture and immigrant history 
in New York City. 
 
Built in 1851-52, the church was once the tallest and most important building for Manhattan’s 
Kleindeutschland ("Little Germany"). The church has been a monument to the legacy of the German 
population, who also began education and social welfare programs to help their community adapt to a new 
environment.  
 
Even as the community demographics shifted to a Hispanic population, and new people sought refuge in 
the church, The Most Holy Redeemer took care to support and immortalize their parishioners by 
incorporating their names into glass windows and on the walls of their buildings. 
 



The presence of historic relics in the church like ‘Our Lady of Perpetual Help’ and the remains of the  
Redemptorist Fathers solidify the church’s importance to Catholicism in the City as a whole. 
 
Beyond its multilayered immigrant history, the church has also been described by the AIA Guide to New 
York City as "a powerful, deeply modeled, limestone pile, one of the tallest structures (except the "projects") 
in the community". Indeed, the eclectic mix of Baroque Romanesque design and Byzantine Revival-style 
developed in 1913 exemplified a new era of technological innovation that stayed true to the legacy of the 
past.  
 
The church’s other technological firsts included being one of the first to have electric lighting and electric 
bell ringing, which set a precedent for other churches to adopt electrical advancements in their building. 
 
On the merits of both its historical and architectural significance, it is urgent that the LPC move 
swiftly to landmark The Most Holy Redeemer Church. 
 
Warm Regards, 

 
Frampton Tolbert 
Executive Director 


